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BEFORE THE 

CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

RONALD CAREY SHIRLEY 
1675 Capewood Lane 
Simi Valley, CA 93065 

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. 
32646 

Respondent. 

CaseNo. AC-2015-105 

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER 

[Gov. Code, §11520] 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. On or about August 10, 2015, Complainant Patti Bowers, in her official capacity as 

the Executive Officer of the California Board of Accountancy, filed Accusation No. AC-2015

105 against Ronald Carey Shirley ("Respondent") before the California Board of Accountancy. 

(Accusation attached as Exhibit A.) 

2. On or about August 1, 1981, the California Board of Accountancy ("CBA") issued 

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. 32646 to Respondent. The Certified Public 

Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in 

Accusation No. AC-2015-105 and will expire on September 30, 2016, unless renewed. 
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3. On or about August 12, 2015, Respondent was served by Certified and First Class 

Mail copies of the Accusation No. AC-2015-105, Statement to Respondent, Notice of Defense, 

Request for Discovery, and Discovery Statutes (Government Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6, 

and 11507.7) at Respondent's address of record which, pursuant to California Code of 

Regulations, title 16, section 1409.1, is required to be reported and maintained with the CBA. 

Respondent's address of record was and is: 1675 Capewood Lane Simi Valley, CA 93065. 

4. Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter of law under the provisions of 

Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c) and/or Business & Professions Code section 

124. 

5. On or about August 19, 2015, the Office of the Attorney General received a signed 

Domestic Return Receipt. 

6. Government Code section 11506 states, in pertinent part: 

(c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent 
files a notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all parts 
of the accusation not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall 
constitute a waiver of respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion 
may nevertheless grant a hearing. 

7. Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service upon him 

of the Accusation, and therefore waived his right to a hearing on the merits of Accusation No. 

AC-2015-105. 

8. California Government Code section 11520 states, in pertinent part: 

(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the 
hearing, the agency may take action based upon the respondent's express admissions 
or upon other evidence and affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to 
respondent. 

9. Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the CBA finds 

Respondent is in default. The CBA will take action without further hearing and, based on the 

relevant evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this matter, as well as 

taking official notice of all the investigatory reports, exhibits and statements contained therein on 

file at the CBA offices regarding the allegations contained in Accusation No. AC-2015-1 05, finds 
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that the charges and allegations in Accusation No. AC-2015-105, are separately and severally, 

found to be true and correct by clear and convincing evidence. 

10. Taking official notice of its own internal records, pursuant to Business and 

Professions Code section 125.3, it is hereby determined that the reasonable costs for Investigation 

and Enforcement is $3,357.76 as of September 3, 2015. 

DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Ronald Carey Shirley has 

subjected his Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. 32646 to discipline. 

2. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. 

3. The CBA is authorized to revoke Respondent's Certified Public Accountant 

Certificate based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation which are supported by 

the evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this case.: 

a. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 490 and 5100, subdivision 

(a), and 5106, in conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 99, in that 

Respondent was convicted of crimes substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or 

duties of a licensed accountant in that on or about April10, 2015, Respondent was convicted of 

two felony counts of violating 18 U.S.C. section 2252A(a)(2)(A), (b)(1) [knowingly attempted to 

receive child pornography] in the criminal proceeding entitled United States ofAmerica v. Ronald 

Carey Shirley (U.S. Dist. Ct, Central District of California, 2015, No. 15-96-JFW). On or about 

June 30, 2015, the Court sentenced Respondent to serve 240 months in Federal Prison and upon 

release from imprisonment, Respondent will be placed on supervised release for a term of life. 

The circumstances underlying the criminal convictions are that on or about and between 

December 21, 2014 and January 24, 2015, Respondent used a website to communicate with J.G., 

a 16-year-old female living in the Philippines. During these communications, Respondent 

solicited J.G. for sexually explicit photographs of herself in exchange for money. Respondent 

sent money to J.G. and received sexually explicit pictures from J.G. through the website. 

Respondent also sent J.G. sexually explicit photographs of himself. During these 

communications, Respondent told J.G. that he would be traveling to the Philippines and solicited 
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J.G. to have sex with him in exchange for money. Respondent also engaged in communications 

with other website users who Respondent believed were minor females, namely, victims R.K, 

A.M., G.S., N.B.A., and M.H.L. In these communications, Respondent solicited A.M., R.K., 

N.B.A., and N.H.L. for sexually explici~ photographs of themselves, and attempted to arrange to 

have sex with R.K., A.M., and G.S. 

b. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 5063(a)(l)(A-B) of the 

Code in that he failed to report his two felony convictions, as described above, to the CBA within 

thirty (30) days after he entered his guilty pleas made on or about AprillO, 2015. 

c. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (g), in 

that Respondent willfully violated the Accountancy Act and the rules and regulations 

promulgated by the CBA under the authority of the Act. 
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ORDER 


IT IS SO ORDERED that Certified Public Accountant Certificate N'o. 32646, heretofore 

issued to Respondent Ronald Carey Shirley, is revoked. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may serve a 

written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within 

seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may 

vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute. 

This Decision shall become effective on Ocl"·Dbt( ~)' 'aJ) \ S 

It is so ORDERED :2·( {tt<...t-l\\:2e ( ~·afd\S, 

FOR THE CALIFORNIA BOARD OF A OUNTANCY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

51896382.DOC 
DOJ Matter ID:LA2015501146 
09042015 

Attachment: 
Exhibit A: Accusation 
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Exhibit A 
Accusation 

(RONALD CAREY SHIRLEY) 



KAMALA D. HARRIS 

Aitomey General of California 

ARMANDOZAMBRANO , 

Supe1•vising Deputy Attorney General 

ELYSE M. DAVIDSON 

Deputy Atto1'11ey General 

State Bar No. 285842 


300 So. Sp1·ing st,;eet, Suitt? 1702 

Los Angeles; CA 90013 

Telephone: (213) 897"2533 

Facsimile: (213) 897"2804 


Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
CALiFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER A,FFAffiS . 

STATE OF CALU?O;RNIA 

In the Matter ofthe Accusation Against: Case No. AC~2015~105 

RONALD CAREY SHIRLEY 

1675 Capewood Lane · 

Simi Valley, CA 93065 
 ACCUSATION 

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. · 
32646. . 

Re~pondent. 

Complainant ·alleges: 

. PARTIES 

1. Patti Bowers ("Cmnplaina11t") brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity as 

th.e Executive Officer' of the California Board ofAccountancy ("CBA"). 

2. 011. or about August 1, 1981, the CBA issued Certified P·ublic Accountant Certificate 

Numbet 32646 to Ronald Carey Shirley ("Respondent"), rhe Ce1tified Pnblic Accountant 

Certificate was in full fotce and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will 

expire 01). September 30,, 2016, tl11less 1'enewed. 

Ill 

Ill 

'Ill 
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,TIJRJSDICTION 

3. This Accusation is btought before the CBA undet· the.autho1'ity of the fqllowing laws. 

All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless othet•wise indicated. 

4. Section 5109 states: 

''The expimtion, ca11Gellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a license, pmctice pl'ivilege, o1· 

other·authority to practice public accountancy by ope1·ation.'oflaw o1· by ot·det• or decision ofthe 

board Ot' a cml1't of law, the placement of a license on a ~·etired status, or the volunta1·y sut•t·ender 

of a license by a licensee shall not deprive the board ofjt1dsdiction to commence or proceed with 

any investigation of or action o1• disciplinary proceeding against the licensee,· or to rendet a 

decision suspending ot revoking the license." 

STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

5. Secti01: 490 ofthe Code provides, in·pertinent part, that a boru·d may suspend Ol' 

revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been convicted of a cl'ime substantially 

related to the qualifications, functions, or ,duties of the business Ol' profession for which the 

license was issued. 

6. Section 5063 states: 

"(a) A licensee shall report to the board in writing of the occurrence of any ofthe following 

events occurring on or after January 1, 1997, within 30 days ofthe d~te the licensee has 

knowledge ofthese events: 

"(1) The conviction ofthe licensee of any of the following: 

"(A) A felony. 

·'~(B) Any cdtne related to the q_ualifications, functions, o1' dutl~s of a public accountai1t or. 

certified public accountant, or to acts or activltles in tlie cout•se and scope of the practice of public 

accountancy.. 

As used in this section, a conviction includes the initial plea, vet•dict, or findin.g of guilt, 

pleas of no .contest, or pronouncement of sentence by a trial court even though that conviction 

may not be final or sentence actually imposed until appeals are. exhaustt.Jd." 
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7. Section 5100 states: 

·UAfter notice and hearing the bom·d may l'evoke, suspend, or refuse to renew any permit or 

c~,rtificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and Article 5 (commencing 

with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of that permit·or certificate for unprofessional 

conduct that includes, but is not limited to, one or any com.bination of the following causes: 

1'(a) Conviction Of any crime substrintially related to the qualifications, functions and duties 

of acertified public accountant or a public accol.llltal;t, 

"(g) Willful violation ofthis chapter or any mle or regulation promulgated by the board 

under the authority granted under this chapter. 

8; Section 5106 states: 
. ¢ 

11A plea or verdict of guilty Ol' a conviction following a plea of nolo cont.endere· is deemed 

to be a conviction within the meani11g of this article, The record of the conviction shall be 

conclusive evidence thereof, The board may order the certificate or permit suspended or revoked, 

or may decline to issue a certificate ot· pem1it, when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the 

judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made, 

suspending the imposition of sentence, ir1·espective of a subsequent order under the provisions of 

Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing such pe1·son to withdraw his plea of g~lilty and to enter 
. . 

a plea ofnot guilty, or setting aside the vet·dict of guilty or dismissing the accusation, information 

or indictment," · 

REGULATORY PROVISIONS 

9, California Code ofReg~llations, title 16, section 99 states: 

Fot· the p1.l1'poses of denial, StlSpension, or !'evocation of a certificate or permit purs~lant to 

D.ivision 1.5 (comme110h1g with Section475) of the Business and P1·ofessions Code, a crime o1· 

act shall be considered to be substantially related to the qualifications, functions or d:nties of a 

cettified public accountant Ol' P1Jblic accountant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or 

potential unfitness of a certified public accountant Ol' public accountant to perform the functions 
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. authorized by his or her cet'tificate or pennit in a manner consistent with the· public health, safecy, 

or welfare. Such crimes Ol' acts shall include hLlt not be limited to those involving the following: · 

(a) Dishonesty, fraud, or breach of fiducia;t·y responsibility of any kind; 

(b) Fraud or deceit in obtaining a certified public accountant's certificate. or a· public · 

· accountant's,Permit under Chapter 1, Division III of the Business and Professions Code; 

(c) Gross i1egligence il1 the practice ofptlblic accotultancy or in the performance ofthe 
' ' 

bookkeeping operations'described iu Section 5052 ofthe code; 

(d) Violation of any of the provisions of Chapter 1, Division III 'of the Btlshtess and 


Professions Code or willful violation of any rule or regulation ofthe board. 


COST RECOVERY 

10, Section 5107(a) ofthe Code states: 

"The executive officer ofthe board may reqU;est the adn:Hnistrative law judge, as part ofthe 
•, 

proposed decision in a disciplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a permit or certificate · 

found to have committed a violation or violations ofthis chapter to pay to the board all . 

reason~ble costs of investigation and prosecution ofthe case, including, but not limite~ to, 

.attorneys' fees. The board. shall not recover costs incurred at the administrative hearing." 

i 1. Section 5116 ofthe Code states: 

(a) The board, after appropriate notice and an opportunity-for hearing, may o1·der any 

licensee or applicant for licens·ure ot• exmnination to pay an administrative penalty as provided in 

this article as part of any disciplh1ary proceeding or other proceeding provided for in this chapter, 

(b) The board may assess administrative penalties under one or more provisions ofthis 

article. However, the total admhtistr~tive penalty to be paid by the licensee shall 11ot exceed the . 
" 

amount ofthe highest ad11Jinistrative penalty a\lthorized by this article, . 

(c) The board shall adopt regulations to establish criteria for assessing administrative 

penalties based upon factors, including, but npt li1nited to, actual and potential consumer har1n, 

nature and severity ofthe violation, the t•ole·ofthe person i11 the violati911, the person's ability to 

pay the admh1.istrative penalty, and the level of administrative penalty necessary to dete1· f~1ture . 

violations of this chapter. 
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·(d) Administrative penalties assessed undet• this article' shall be in addition to any other 

' pent\lties or sanctions hnposed on the licensee or other person, including, but not limited to, 

license revocation, license S\lSpension, denial of the applio'ation fot•lioensure, denial ofthe 

petition for reinstatement, or denial of admission to the licensing examination. Payment ofthese 

administrative penalties may be included as a condition of probation when probation i~ ordered. 

(e) All administrative penalties collected under this article shall be deposited in the 

Accountancy Fund~ 

ll'JRST CAUSE l?OR DISCIPLINE 

(Convictions of Substantially Related Crimes) 

12. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 490 and 5100, Sllbdivision 

(a), and 5106, in conjunction with Califomia Code ofRegtllations, title 16, section 99, in that 

Respondent was convicted of a s~bstantially related crime, as follows: 

a. On or about April10, 2015, Respondent was convicted of two felony counts of 

violating 18 U.S.C. section2252A(a)(2)(A), (b)(l) [lmowingly attempted to reoeive child 

portJ,bgraphy] in the criminal proceeding entitled Untted States ofAmerica v. Ronald Carey 

Shirley (U.S. Dist. Ct, Central Distl'ict of California, 2015, No. 15~96~JFW).. On or about June 

30, 2015, the Court sentenced Respondent to serve 240 months in Federal Pdson and upon 

release from imprisonment, Respondent will be placed on, supervised release for a term of life. 

b. On or abOl,lt and between December 21, 2014.and January 24, 2015, Respondent used 

a website to communicate with a J.G., 16·year~old female li~ing in the Philippines. Dul'ing these 

cmum1.inications, Respondent solicited J,G, for sexuallyexplicit photographs of herself in 

exchange for money. Respondent sent money using money transfet·s ·company and received 

sexually explicit pictures from J.G. through the website, Respondent also sent J,G, sexually 

explicit photographs of himself. During these communications, Respondent told J,G, that he 

would be traveling to the Philippines arid solicited J.G. to have .sex with him in exchange fot· 

money. Respondent also engaged in communications with other website users who Respondent 

believed were m.inor fetnales, nmnely, victims R.K, A.M., G.S., N.B.A., and M.H.L. In these 
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communications, Resp011dent solicited A.M., R.i<., N.B.A., and N.H.L. for sexually explicit 

p~otographs of themselves, and a!tempted to arrange to have sex with R.K., A.M., and G;.S. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failin·e to Report Convictions) 

13. Re~pondent has subjected his license to disciplinat·y undel' section 5063(a)(l)(A-B) of 

the Code in that he failed to rei)Ol't his two· felony convictiohs, as described above, to the CBA 

within thirty (30) days after he entered his guilty pleas made 011. or about AprillO, 2015. 

.Complainant incorporates by reference paragraphs 12, and all subparagraphs, inclusive, ~s iffully 

set forth herein. 

TIDRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Willful Violation ofAccountancy Act) 

14. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 51 0.0, subdivision (g), in 

that Respondent willfully violated the Accountancy Act and the i·ules and regulations 

p1·omulgated by the CBA under the authority ofthe Act. Complainant incorporates by reference 

paragraphs 12, and all subparagraphs, inclusive, as i.f:fully set forth herein. 
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PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the mattets· herein alleged, 

and that follo;wing the hearing, the CBA issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending o1• otherwise imposing discipline upon Certified Public 

Accountant Cetti:flcate Number 32646, issued to Ronald Catey Shirley; 

2. 01'dering Ronald Carey Shii'ley to pay the CBA the reasonable costs ofthe 

investigation and enfo!'cement ofthis case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 

5107; 

3. Ot·dedng Ronald Cat•ey Shirley to ·pay the California board of Accountancy an 

administrative penalty pursuant to Business and Professi.ons Code section 5116; 
' . 

4. Taldng such other and fmther action as dee1ned necessary and propet~.. 

P T': I BOWERS 
. Executive Officet' 

Califomia Board of Accountancy 
State of Califomiu 
Complainant 

LA2015501146 
51825441 .doc 
0805DRAFT_A.Z01;5 
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